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FOREWORD

We continue our presentation of appeals from NABC tournaments. As always
our goal is to inform, provide constructive criticism and stimulate change (that is
hopefully for the better) in a way that is instructive and entertaining.

At NABC s, appeals from non-NABC+ events (including side games, regional
events and restricted NABC events) are heard by Director Panels while appeals
from unrestricted NABC+ events are heard by the National Appeals Committee
(NAC). Both types of cases are reviewed here.

Each panelist is sent all cases and invited to comment on as many or as few of
them as he wishes. Some panelists may choose not to comment on every case.

Table rulings are normally made after consultation among Directors, which
typically includes the DIC of the event (who is responsible for the final ruling). This
is true even if on occasion we refer to a ruling as the table Director’s. In addition,
in 2003 we are witnessing an increase in Directors consulting with expert players
(or peers of the players involved in the ruling situation) on bridge-judgment issues
before making a final ruling. While this has not yet become policy (as it is in the
WBF) we enthusiastically applaud the Directing staff’s efforts in this direction.

At management’s request, only the DIC’s name is included in each write-up.
Additionally, we should bear in mind that in these pages we see only a subset of all
table rulings that are made at an NABC tournament—specifically those that some
players disagreed with. To that extent their representativeness of all rulings is open
to question.

In 2003, under the guidance of Joan Gerard as Director of Appeals and Barry
Rigal as Chairman of NAC, an attempt has been made to increase the presence of
top players on Appeal Committees. To this end a number of top players who are not
members of NAC have been asked to serve on Appeals Committees for one or two
nights at each NABC. We hope this will increase the level of bridge expertise (or
at least the perception of that level) that goes into each appeal decision. While the
cases here represent only the beginning stages of this effort, we hope this leads to
better appeals decisions—or at least better acceptance of those decisions in the
bridge community.

Ambiguity Department. Write-ups often refer to “an x-second BIT.” Our policy
is to treat all tempo references as the fotal time taken for the call (unless otherwise
specified) and not how much longer than “normal” the call took (which poses the
additional problem of what is normal for the situation). Chairmen and scribes
should adjust their reports accordingly.

Mild Disclaimer Department. While we make every effort to insure that write-
ups are complete and accurate, we cannot offer any guarantees. Since even minor
changes in the reported facts of a case can have a large affect on our evaluations,
the opinions expressed should be considered valid only for cases that match the
facts reported. Otherwise, discussions of cases reported here should be regarded
merely as theoretical exercises.

Suggestions for improvements are welcome. They may be sent via e-mail to:
Rich.Colker@achl.org or via U.S. mail to the editor, c/o ACBL, 2990 Airways
Boulevard, Memphis TN 38116-3847.

Finally, my thanks go to everyone whose efforts contribute to these casebooks:
the scribes, reviewers and chairmen who labor to chronicle the details of each case;
the panelists for their hard work and devotion to a truly arduous task for which they
receive only praise (and occasional abuse); and, of course, Linda Trent, without
whose efforts the quality of these casebooks would surely suffer. My sincere thanks
to all of you. I hope my efforts have not in any way diminished your good work.

Rich Colker
January, 2004
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THE EXPERT PANEL

Karen Allison, ageless, was born in Brooklyn and is a graduate of Brooklyn
College. She currently lives in Las Vegas, NV, with her two cats, Stella and
Stanley—and is loving it. A former options trader, Karen is currently a bridge
teacher and writer. When she isn't “catting” around she enjoys traveling, reading,
the theater and concerts. She has served on the National Laws Commission since
1982 and has worked on several revisions of both the Laws of Contract and of
Rubber Bridge. Karen is proudest of her silver medal for the Women's Teams in
Albuquerque in 1994 and of winning the CNTC and representing Canada in the
Open Teams Olympiad in Monte Carlo in 1976. More recently, at the 2002 World
Women'’s Pairs in Montreal she and partner Peggy Sutherlin placed “as close to a
medal as one can without getting one...sigh.”

Ralph Cohen, 77, was born in Montreal, PQ. He currently resides in Memphis, TN.
He has held several positions with the ACBL from 1971 until 1991 including
Executive Director from 1984 to 1986. He has been a member of ACBL Laws
Commission since 1984 and is currently a Co-Chairman. He is a Vice-Chairman of
the WBF Laws Committee. He wrote the Ruling the Game column for two years
along with other contributions for The ACBL Bridge Bulletin. He represented
Canada in the World Team Olympiad in 1964 and has won four National
Championships. He has been attending NABCs since 1947.

Grattan Endicott, 80, was born in Coventry, England and currently resides in
Liverpool. He is divorced and has two sons, three granddaughters, one grandson
and one great granddaughter. His late brother has furnished him with multitudinous
blood relations across Canada including a great-great niece. He was invested in
1998 by the Queen as an Officer of the Order of the British Empire (OBE). He has
been a dedicated member of many Laws Committees and is currently the secretary
of the WBF Laws Committee. He has kept impeccable records and is a respected
authority on the chronology of Laws interpretations.

Ron Gerard, 59, was born in New York. He is a graduate of Harvard and Michigan
Law School (JD). He currently resides in White Plains, NY with his wife Joan
(District 3 Director), where he is an attorney. Ron is a college basketball fan and
enjoys classical music and tennis. He is proudest of winning both the Spingold and
Blue Ribbon Pairs in 1981. Each year from 1990 to 1995 he made it to at least the
round of eight in the Vanderbilt; he played in three finals (winning in Fort Worth
in 1990) and one semi-final without playing once on a professional team.

Jeff Goldsmith, 42, was born near Schenectady, NY. He has lived in Pasadena,
CA, for the last 20 years. He graduated from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute and
Caltech. He is a software engineer, focusing on computer graphics and animation
and internet programming, all with a heavy mathematical perspective. He created
computer animation for JPL for several years, including the movies about
Voyager’s encountering Uranus. He ice dances and plays many other games,
particularly German board games. His web site (http://www.gg.caltech.edu/~jef¥)
contains lots of bridge and other material.

Jeffrey Polisner, 64, was born in Buffalo, NY and currently resides in Northern
CA where he has been a practicing attorney since 1967. He is a graduate of Ohio
State University (BS) and obtained his JD from Case Western Reserve. He is
currently the WBF Counsel and former ACBL League Counsel. He is a member of
the ACBL and WBF Laws Commissions and former Co-Chairman of the ACBL
National Appeals Committee.

Barry Rigal, 45, was born in London, England. He currently resides in New York
City with his wife, Sue Picus. A bridge writer and analyst, he contributes to many

periodicals worldwide and is the author of the book, Precision in the Nineties. He
enjoys theater, music, arts, and travel. Barry is also an outstanding Vugraph
commentator, demonstrating an extensive knowledge of bidding systems played by
pairs all over the world. He coached the USA I team to the Venice Cup in 1997. He
1s proudest of his fourth-place finish in the 1990 Geneva World Mixed Pairs and
winning the Common Market Mixed Teams in 1987 and the Gold Cup in 1991. In
2003 he was appointed chairman of the ACBL National Appeals Committee.

Dave Treadwell, 91, was born in Belleville, NJ, and currently resides in
Wilmington, DE. He is a retired Chemical Engineer, a graduate of MIT, and was
employed by DuPont for more than 40 years where he was involved in the
production of Teflon for introduction to the marketplace. He has three grown
children, three grandchildren and two great-grandchildren. His hobbies include
blackjack and magic squares. The bridge accomplishment he is proudest of is
breaking the 20,000 masterpoint barrier. He believes bridge can be competitive and
intellectual, but above all can be and must be fun.

Howard Weinstein, 50, was born in Minneapolis and graduated the University of
Minnesota. He is a retired options trader who currently resides in Sarasota, FL, with
his fiancee (the wedding is planned for this fall). His brother, sister and parents all
reside in Minneapolis. His parents both play bridge and his father is a Life Master.
Howard is a sports enthusiast and enjoys playing golf. He is co-chair of ACBL
Ethical Oversight Committee, former chair of Conventions and Competition
Committee, and former National Appeals Committee member. He has won eight
National Championships and represented the USA in the 2000 World Teams
Olympiad (where his team finished third).

Adam Wildavsky, 43, is the proprietor of Tameware LLC, a computer consulting
company in New York City specializing in Extreme Programming. He has been
interested in the laws ever since he became the Director of the MIT Bridge Club,
more than a few years ago. Adam is a member of the NABC Appeals Committee,
a regular contributor to the Bridge Laws Mailing List and appeals editor for the
Greater New York Bridge Association. He’s won three National Championships,
most recently the 2002 Reisinger Board-a-Match teams, and a Bronze medal for his
third-place finish in the 2003 Bermuda Bowl in Monte Carlo. His study of the laws
is informed by his study of Objectivism, the philosophy of Ayn Rand.

Bobby Wolff, 71, was born in San Antonio and is a graduate of Trinity U. He
currently resides in Dallas, TX. His father, mother, brother and wives all played
bridge. Bobby is a member of the ACBL Hall of Fame as well as a Grand Life
Master in both the WBF and the ACBL. He is one of the world’s great players and
has won ten World Titles and numerous National Championships including four
straight Spingolds (1993-96). He served as ACBL president in 1987 and WBF
president from 1992-1994. He has served as tournament recorder at NABCs and is
the author of the ACBL active ethics program. Among his pet projects are
eliminating both Convention Disruption (CD) and Hesitation Disruption (HD).
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CASE ONE

Subject (Tempo): Three Bids And You’re Out
Event: Grand National Teams, Championship Flight, 16 Jul 03, Second Session

The Facts: 3NT made three,
+400 for E/W. The opening lead
was the #4. The Director was
called after the 3NT bid. West

Bd: 34 Chris Compton
Dlr: East & AK102
Vul: N/S © Q743

o 195 had taken up to 2 minutes before

bidding 3%. The Director ruled

%105 that 3NT was suggested by the

Garey Hayden Roger Bates BIT and that pass was an LA

® 65 @ J73 (Law 16). The contract was

Q KJ6 Q A8 changed to 3% made five, +150
o K2 O A10843 for E/W.

& AJ8764 Q92 The Appeal: E/W appealed the

Hemant Lall Director’s ruling. East said that

& Q984 the BIT did not suggest that any

© 10952 one bid would be more successful

than any other. West might have

© Q76 been considering many actions

& K3 with many possible hands. He

also said that he would expect his
partner to bid 4% with a singleton
spade. E/W claimed that 3NT was
not a very good game that

WEST NORTH EAST SOUTH
Pass Pass

14 Pass 10 Pass happened to make, and was not a
pL Pass 29 Pass result of any UL

3%(1) Pass 3NT ) .

(1) BIT The Committee Decision: After

analyzing the possibilities, the
Committee determined that the
only LAs for East were pass and
3NT. Did the BIT demonstrably suggest bidding over passing? Was pass mandatory
under Law 73C? The Committee eventually decided that bidding 3NT was
demonstrably more likely to be successful than passing. The 3NT bid was not
allowed and the contract changed to 3% made five, +150 for E/W. Since there was
enough sentiment on the Committee that bidding 3NT was lawful in spite of the
BIT, the appeal was deemed to have merit.

DIC of Event: Henry Cukoff
Committee: Kit Woolsey (chair), Chris Moll, Bob Schwartz (scribe)

&S Most panelists think it was clear not to allow East’s 3NT bid and raise serious
questions about the merits of the appeal.

Allison: “In my partnership I could produce notes to show that 29 in this auction
is game forcing. Failing that, I would give no relief to an East player who took
advantage of Ul by bidding on after an agonized 3. It is quite clear that the West
player had something to add to this auction—extra offense, extra points, but no
clear way (other than the huddle) to communicate it. ’'m not convinced of the merit
of this appeal.”

R. Cohen: “If East wanted to bid over 3%, wasn’t 3# asking for at least a half
stopper appropriate? I don’t understand the last sentence in the decision. What was
at all legal about 3NT? An AWMW was in order.”

Goldsmith: “There are two issues. One, is passing 3% an LA? Of course it is. If it
were not, East would have bid 3NT on the previous round. Two, is 3NT
demonstrably suggested by the hesitation? That’s easy. If West isn’t sure 34 is the
right contract, it isn’t. The Director got it right. Is this appeal meritorious? I can see
why the Committee thought it was: some of them would have bid 3NT and not
thought it a problem. Perhaps, however, they overlooked the fact that they would
have bid 3NT at their second turn. E/W are experienced enough to know better and
should have been awarded an AWMW if not an AWMW and a PP. The fact that
3NT isn’t much of a contract has no bearing. I suspect that West’s huddle was
actually his trying to figure out what 29 was all about, not judging whether or not
to bid more than 3. 3NT was an awful contract, partly because West didn’t have
his huddle. Regardless of why West really did huddle, from East’s perspective, the
overwhelmingly likely reason is that partner had a 3-1/2% bid, so the adjustment is
appropriate. This would have been a much more interesting case if West, after 30
seconds of thought, had Alerted 2. Then it is clear that what he was thinking about
was the meaning of 29¥. Would the UI from the slow Alert mitigate the UI from the
BIT or ought it be treated the same as any other UI? In theory, the latter.”

Wildavsky: “‘East said that the BIT did not suggest that any one bid would be
more successful than any other.” I double. A slow signoff demonstrably suggests
doubt, all the more so since West could not have passed 29. As Kaplan put it,
‘Would it have been obviously foolish to pass, an egregious error, absurd? No, it
wouldn’t—pass would be right quite often.” As for the E/W claim that 3NT was not
a good game, that’s true. Had it gone down they’d have kept their score. That’s
their incentive to follow Law 73C. E/W were lucky to avoid an AWMW. I’d have
argued for a PP as well, for blatant use of UL.”

S I agree with Jeff and Adam that there’s a pretty strong case for a PP here.

Endicott: “If the Committee accepts East’s argument it remains the case that pass
is an LA and less suggested by the BIT than bidding. I consider the merit of the
appeal in great doubt for this reason, and the Committee’s decision consequently
rather benign.”

Rigal: “I like the direction this appeal went. Regardless of whether E/W had malice
in their hearts, it seems wrong to me that East should have been permitted to follow
the route he chose. Once he passed initially, to treat his hand as a drive to game
seems strange and the table action may have been partly responsible. West had four
stronger or different actions than 3% and the one he chose was the weakest. His
partner’s tempo deprived East of the chance to be brilliant. N/S were due the benefit
of this ruling: it was going to be nothing like automatic for E/W to bid this hand to
game, so there is no question in my mind that the most favorable outcome that was
likely was defending 3. That should have been mentioned in the write-up. My
instincts are that the length of discussion here was enough reason not to give an
AWMW but I might have been persuaded otherwise in different circumstances.”

Weinstein: “The Committee decided that ‘bidding 3NT was demonstrably more
likely to be successful.” If I'm holding thirteen top tricks, bidding 7NT is
demonstrably more likely to be successful and I would feel very disappointed to
have an Appeals Committee take that away from me if my partner huddled.
Whether 3NT was demonstrably suggested seems the more appropriate question to
ask, and that is a tougher question. The corollary is that an in-tempo 3% suggests
that 3NT will not be a winning action. Although 3NT is not directly suggested, it
becomes a much higher percentage action when the quick 3 bids are eliminated.
On the surface it should not be allowed. Which brings us back to an old Bobby
Goldman suggestion that has always held some appeal to me. If the hand providing
Ul turns out not to have the hand that would have suggested the questionable action
taken by his partner, then it becomes de facto not demonstrably suggested. For



example, the bidding goes: 148-P-24-39; 36-P-4&_ The 34 bid was slow, but it
turns out that the 34 bidder had nothing resembling a game try. Then by definition
the 44 bidder can’t be liable for using UI, since the BIT obviously didn’t
demonstrably suggest the 4 bid. Returning to the hand in question, the 3% bidder
didn’t really have anything forward going to consider and I am not sure what
alternatives he was considering. However, I would still decide as the Committee did
since it is likely he was considering either 2NT or a more forward-going action,
both of which could suggest 3NT. Is there a case for using the Goldman suggestion,
even if it shouldn’t apply in this case?”

&S I opposed Goldie’s proposal when he first offered it and I am still opposed to
it today. Cases arise regularly where one player breaks tempo and his partner takes
an action that may have been based on it. The problem with allowing the partner’s
action when the hesitator’s hand does not “match” his tempo is that it gives players
license to take advantage of their partner’s tempo (see CASE FIVE) when they will
often know more about what that tempo means than we do. And this is no more
acceptable when done by weaker players than by players whose skills are better or
whose hesitations less random. Additionally, adopting such an approach requires
Directors and Committees to evaluate the hesitator’s hand to determine whether it
matches his table action—that is, whether he “has his huddle.” What if he has a
minimum but good controls, or his points are in the right places? What if his fit for
partner could prove useful even though he has fewer HCP than one might expect?
How aggressive or conservative are the players in question? This approach opens
up a whole new can of worms. And what about the exceptions, like the present case
where Howard admits that the BIT suggests a more forward-going action even
though the player’s hand does not match his BIT? Sorry, but this is a bad idea. In
most cases where this approach appears useful I find that the same decision can be
reached simply by examining the “demonstrably suggests” issue with greater care.
The next panelist is prepared to tell us the truth—if we can handle it.

Gerard: “Yes, it could have been that East planned the auction. He didn’t just blast
3NT over 2¢ and didn’t invite with 2NT or 3%, so he could easily have intended
a two-step to stay out of 3NT opposite spade shortness or weakness. But he could
also have changed his mind. The 29 bid wasn’t such an alarm clock that we have
to believe him. He could just have been another expert who bids what’s in front of
him and doesn’t worry about things in advance. Since most of the lead plaintiff’s
case was about demonstrably suggested rather than LAs, East set himself up for the
inevitable conclusion that the Ul pointed to 3NT. After that he was toast, since
some of his peers would have passed 3% even after having bid 29 and more would
have considered it. If you read between the lines, it looks like the one thing the
Committee didn’t struggle with was the notion that pass was an LA.

“But I happen to know that wasn’t true. One Committee member was so
adamant that 3NT was the right bridge bid that the decision nearly went the other
way. This would have made us all look foolish (the system always gets the blame
when one or two loose cannons go off on frolic and detour), so thankfully reason
prevailed. But why wasn’t there a dissent? I hadn’t heard that the vocal minority
caved in at the end.

“I don’t think a Law 73C violation is the only thing that gets you an AWMW.
There’s a difference between the standards of the Proprieties and those of appeals.
You can bid over the slow signoff without necessarily taking advantage under Law
73C, but you have to recognize that appealing after the wheel back adjustment can
be too much of an offense against the system. Law 73C seems more like PP
territory anyway. [ think East should have known not to pursue this,
notwithstanding that he might have convinced himself that he was careful to avoid
taking advantage. But clearly this Committee could not issue an AWMW, given the
significant sentiment that 3NT was just bridge, mister.”

&S Ron is right. One Committee member almost convinced another who was

initially on the fence to vote with him to allow the table result to stand, which
would indeed have been a black eye for the appeal process. I think this member was
thinking too much like a bridge expert and not enough like an appeals person.
While it is not too difficult to find reasons to bid 3NT (see Dave’s comment below),
there are equally compelling reasons why East might not have done so (see Barry’s
earlier comment).

Now let’s hear from two panelists who errantly echo the sentiments of the
“adamant” Committee member, and a third who operates by his own set of laws.

Treadwell: “I agree that bidding 3NT was more likely to be successful than
passing, but not because of the BIT. After all, the game is IMPs and games are, and
should be, bid aggressively. I would never dream of passing 3&; after all, the
opponents have not bid spades and my failure to bid notrump earlier implies a
weakness in spades, so partner can pull with a singleton or void in that suit.
Furthermore, I have made a game-forcing reverse and cannot pass, partner may
have been considering slam.”

&S I think Dave missed the fact that East was a passed hand (passed hands cannot
usually make game-forcing reverses). But apart from that, why would 3% ever be
taken as constructive? Call me crazy, but opener’s rebidding his suit twice sure
sounds regressive to me. As for the argument that the aggressiveness dictated by the
form of scoring justifies the 3NT bid, that might be fine if West guaranteed a full
opening bid (although even then I would not allow 3NT). But a third-seat opening
could be made on as little as #xx VQJx OKx #KJ10xxx—but of course West’s
tempo made that impossible. Sorry, but the last time I looked +110 and +130 were
better scores—and even earned more imps—than —50 or —100.

Polisner: “I am not concerned about the decision, but I am about the process
employed by the Committee if the write-up is accurate. Ul requires a three-step
process and the steps must be taken in order: (1) Was there UI? If no, end of case.
Ifyes, (2) did the UI suggest that one action would likely be more successful than
another? If no, end of case. If yes, (3) was there any LA to the action chosen at the
table? If no, end of case; if yes, adjusted score. I think that I would have allowed
the table result to stand as once East rebid 29 rather than 3¢ he was pretty much
committed to get to at least SNT. Look at West’s hand. What might he have been
thinking about? Only 3%, 30 or 39. The BIT only shows that West was thinking
of which one to bid. This was what Wolffie calls NPL (Normal Playing Luck) and
even though non-vulnerable, 3NT at IMPs is still a 6-imp gain.”

&S Why must the three steps be taken in that order? If we first judge that there was
no LA to 3NT, wouldn’t that eliminate the need to evaluate the other two
questions? Or if we first judge that the BIT did not suggest any particular action (or
class of actions), wouldn’t that also render the other questions moot? While Jeft’s
order certainly makes good sense, that does not alter the fact that logically, when
several conditions all must hold for a conclusion to be judged valid, disproving any
one of the conditions (in any order we choose to test them) invalidates the
conclusion. And why did East’s 29 bid commit his side to at least 3NT? Opposite
the example third-seat 1% opening I proposed earlier 3NT has no play. Remove the
%10 from that hand and even 3 is not safe.
Right on cue, here’s Wolffie to remind us “How Things Ought To Be.”

Wolff: “We should not interfere with results where after possible infractions the
final contract is iffy. Here E/W should go +400 and N/S —400 and then E/W should
be penalized a proper amount to reflect the degree of guilt. Here is a small degree
so perhaps E/W should forfeit 3 imps back to their opponents. This is especially
important in matchpoints (this was IMPs) where the field is involved. Normal
Playing Luck (NPL) determines whether close contracts make (in the absence of
misplays or misdefenses) and should be respected.”



& Basing our decision on whether an illicitly-reached contract is “iffy” is akin to
requiring the tempo breaker’s hand to be consistent with his huddle before adjusting
the score: both are bad ideas. PPs should be reserved for addressing disciplinary
matters, not for redressing damage. Score adjustments serve the latter purpose and
the two should not be confused. The Director and Committee did well to adjust the
score and as Ron suggests an AWMW would have been warranted but for the rogue
Committee member. East’s 3NT bid is pretty flagrant, so for that reason (and only
that reason) a PP against E/W is also justified here.

CASE TWO

Subject (Tempo): A Withdrawal With Prejudice
Event: David Bruce LM-5000 Pairs, 18 Jul 03, Second Qualifying Session

The Facts: 59 made five, +650 for
N/S. The opening lead was the #J.
The Director was called after South

Bd: 12 & A5
DIr: West  © AKQJ542

Vul: N/S o5 bid 59. Although the Stop Card was
» 1063 notkuieid,1 5it was tcllgr%e(% that North

too -15 seconds before passing

4 KQ8763 4 J1094 4é. North made a move to bid,
98 3 withdrew and then passed. The
< AQ109 O K8762 Director ruled that South knew her
&K & JO8 partner had greater values than a
a2 simple 29 overcall, which made a

59 bid appear safer (vulnerable vs

© 1076 non-vulnerable). The Director

© 143 decided that pass was an LA and

& AQ7542 changed the contract to 44 down

one, +50 for N/S.
WEST  NORTH EAST  SOUTH The Appeal: N/S appealed the
1 29 24 39 Director’s ruling. E/W did not attend
44 Pass(1) Pass 59 the hearing. North said she started to
All Pass lean forward right after the 44 bid
(1) BIT and then remembered she was

supposed to wait even though the
Stop Card was not used. While she
was waiting she did think about what
to bid and passed after about 11-14 seconds. North said she was trying to be ethical
and believed she was being punished because she went just a little over the time
limit. South believed she could bid anything she wished because her partner
observed the Skip Bid requirements. She could give no reason for bidding only 3¢
and then evaluating her hand upward enough to bid at the five-level at unfavorable
vulnerability.

The Panel Decision: The Panel heard from three experts on two subjects. The first
question put to them was whether 11-14 seconds was enough over the 10-second
limit to become a BIT. All said yes. The second question was whether pass was an
LA. Again all said yes. Normally a few seconds over the requirement would not be
a BIT. But here the combination of North leaning forward to bid, then sitting back
and thinking, and then taking more than the normal 10 seconds appeared to create
a BIT. With the experts fully in support, the Panel decided pass was an LA to 59
and changed the contract to 4 down one, +50 for N/S. Since the Panel departed
from normal guidelines on the timing question, the appeal was deemed to have
merit.

DIC of Event: Millard Nachtwey
Panel: Charlie MacCracken (Reviewer), John Ashton, Ken VanCleve
Players consulted: Darwin Afdahl, Ed Lazarus, Jeff Polisner

S While a majority of the panelists believe a score adjustment is clear, there is
some controversy over whether the appeal has merit, whether South’s 59 bid was
so egregious as to warrant a PP, and whether the score should be adjusted to 44
down one (allowing North to find the diamond shift at trick two) or to 4 making
(after a club shift at trick two). Our first panelist tackles all of these issues.



Goldsmith: “Sometimes it’s easier to work with the forest than the trees. It doesn’t
matter if North hesitated 10 or 11 seconds; what matters is whether or not South had
UL Everyone at the table knew she did. North’s hand said she did. South’s hand
says she did. Therefore, she did and an adjustment was indicated. Was the
adjustment that was chosen appropriate? Most defenses will beat 4, but not all.
At IMPs, North would have to play partner for a club entry, so shifting to the stiff
diamond is the best chance to beat the hand. It might blow an overtrick (and once
in a while resolve West’s diamond guess for the contract), but it’s the most likely
defense to beat the hand. Not at matchpoints. Shifting to a diamond could easily
blow an overtrick; imagine declarer’s holding #KQxxxx Vxx ¢CAQ10 #dAx. Is
shifting to a club at all probable? Definitely. s it likely? I think so. N/S —420, E/W
+420. It’d be nice to have a frequency chart of the actual results to help judge how
likely the losing defense is. The appeal had no merit; it’s close whether or not to
give South a PP for flagrant abuse of UL.”

et After the presumed VA lead, South will normally give suit preference. The V6
(the lowest outstanding spot) should mark her with club values, suggesting a shift
to that suit. A diamond shift will beat the contract if South has either minor-suit ace,
but if she has the #KQ, as in Jeff’s construction, then a club shift is needed to deny
E/W the overtrick (unless West’s ®A is singleton, in which case nothing matters).
Since a diamond shift will be right more often and its payoff for being right will be
far greater (+50 versus —420), I judge the diamond shift a clear favorite, though I’d
accept a decision judging a club shift to be “at all probable” but not “likely.”
Additional support for an AWMW comes from...

Allison: “There is no doubt in my mind that this was a BIT. I’'m not sure what
‘normal guidelines’ the Panel departed from but the combination of the extra time
taken and the move to the bid box made it eminently clear that North had something
to say in this auction. South taking advantage of that UI makes this appeal seem to
my mind without merit.”

Polisner: “All fine except a clear AWMW.”
st Several panelists think the Panel’s decision is fine as is.

R. Cohen: “All neat and tidy by all officials. The actions and mannerism of leaning
forward mitigate against South’s 59 bid under Laws 16A and 73F1. Nuff said.”

Treadwell: “Taking a vulnerable versus. non-vulnerable save after you have given
but a single raise is quite an unusual action. The BIT definitely must have
contributed to the decision to bid 59. A good decision by the Panel.”

Wolff: “Good. result.”

Rigal: “The Panel created a dangerous precedent when they used non-experts to
determine whether a specific pause might or might not be a BIT. Having said that,
I agree with their conclusions; North’s sequence of actions surely did convey
something to South to get her to take a remarkable action. Her comment about
thinking she could do anything she wanted somehow implies to me that she knew
her partner’s actions were unusual. As for the defense of 44, I suppose playing for
the diamond ruff is clear enough that we have to let N/S find it. I can quite see why
no AWMW was issued. I think that there was certainly enough meat there to
support that decision.”

S Barry is right about South’s action over 44 being “remarkable” (at unfavorable
vulnerability, by a player who bid only 39 the last time). To my mind had a PP
been issued to N/S at the table for South’s (egregious) 5V bid we might not have
seen this appeal. And if South really thought her hand worthy of an unfavorable

vulnerability save, bridge logic would dictate bidding 5% both because that might
get partner off to a better lead if E/W bid on to the five level and because 5% might
well be a better contract—though that’s not as likely after North’s table action.

Endicott: “This is the kind of case in which the Director’s ‘feel’ at the table is
likely to be the best guide to whether the pause is enough to convey Ul In my
mind, therefore, there is a question about the freedom of the Director to make that
judgment. Does ACBL place trust him to do so? European sentiment currently
dislikes too rigid an imposition of specified numbers of seconds (see my comments
on CASE FIVE).”

& The ACBL’s position on this issue is unclear. My sense is that ACBL Directors
are afforded much the same freedom as European Directors. Unless extenuating
circumstances exist, a player who calls in about 10 seconds following his RHO’s
Skip Bid, give or take a few seconds, regardless of whether a Stop Card was used,
is presumed not to have transmitted UI. It is difficult to envision making such a
judgment without getting a sense of just how much time elapsed, so numbers are
an 1mportant ingredient in the ruling. However, they are not the only factor that
needs to be considered, as we’ve seen numerous times in previous casebooks.

As if to emphasize Grattan’s point, our next panelist demonstrates what can
happen if hen we focus on the timing issue to the exclusion of everything else.

Weinstein: “North said she leaned back because she remembered she was supposed
to wait. The fact that she now recognized that maybe she should think about bidding
seems irrelevant unless she somehow telegraphed that information in a way other
than the double take. In any case, 11-14 seconds constituting a BIT seems harsh,
especially when no Stop Card was used. The allowable time to bid should range
from 5 to 20 seconds before a non-Stop Card user gets any adjustment. Do what
you will to N/S, but leave E/W with their table result.”

&5 As Jeff Goldsmith said earlier, ““...what matters is whether or not South had UI.
Everyone at the table knew she did. North’s hand said she did. South’s hand says
she did. Therefore, she did and an adjustment was indicated.”

Our final panelist introduces his own set of facts.

Wildavsky: “I spoke to the appellants and suggested that they should bring their
case; there’s more to it than would appear at first glance. West failed to use the Stop
Card, then E/W didn’t call the Director immediately after what they considered an
out-of-tempo pass. Outrageous. They trapped South, who had no reason to believe
that Law 73C applied. The Facts section indicates that North made a move to bid,
but there is nothing in the players’ statements to corroborate this. North claimed
that she was reaching for the bid box, presumably to pass (pass is a call, not a bid),
and then realized that she was required to wait even though the Stop Card had not
been used. I find that completely plausible—even likely. The wording of the write-
up is especially troubling. ‘Although the Stop Card was not used, it was agreed that
North took 11-15 seconds before passing 4#.” That makes it sound as though such
a pause would be perfectly appropriate had the Stop Card been used.”

S Not calling the Director at the time of North’s out-of-tempo pass was neither
outrageous nor inappropriate. E/W called promptly when they had reason to suspect
South might have taken advantage of the Ul—when she bid 5¥. While they might
have asked N/S right away if they agreed about North’s actions, that was certainly
not mandatory and the Director call was timely. And it is not the opponents’ job to
tell a player when Law 73C applies. It is each player’s own responsibility to
determine that. So the allegation that South was “trapped” is simply untrue. And
why is there any doubt about North corroborating her table actions when she clearly
admitted to them at the hearing? A player who reaches for the bid box and then
withdraws may be sending an ambiguous message (maybe she forgot to wait or



maybe she wanted to bid but changed her mind), but that is due to her own actions
and she surely does not deserve the benefit of the doubt when her partner then takes
a “remarkable” and unexpected (judging by South’s hand) bridge action.

Finally, the quote Adam cites (“Although...”) seems fairly non-committal to
me. In isolation, waiting 11-15 seconds following a Skip Bid before calling is
normal, regardless of whether or not a Stop Card is used. A Stop Card, we should
remember, is merely a reminder to the next player that he needs to pause about 10
seconds and give the appearance of considering his action before he calls. But an
experienced player is expected to know that already and the fact that a Stop Card
was not used is not an excuse for him to do anything other than what the regulations
ask of him. So an 11-15-second pause is normally considered acceptable tempo, as
Adam points out, but the write-up clearly says that North’s taking (slightly) more
than the normal 10 seconds was only considered UI when taken in combination
with her leaning forward and then sitting back and thinking. In Jeff Goldsmith’s
terms, this whole complex of actions suggested to everyone at the table that South
had Ul—not to mention the evidence from the North hand that 44 was not passed
easily and the evidence from the South hand that 5V was nothing short of
remarkable.

CASE THREE

Subject (Tempo): The Old Fear-Striking Double Ploy
Event: David Bruce LM-5000 Pairs, 18 Jul 03, Second Qualifying Session

The Facts: 54 doubled went down
two, +300 for N/S. The opening lead
was the 5. E/W called the Director

Bd: 12 & A5
DIr: West @ AKQJ542

Vul: N/S o5 after South hesitated over 3#. N/S
® 1063 ?ggeed 50 a long I)lesitiatiﬁ)n by South

about 2 minutes) and that pass was

4 KQ8763 4 J1094 an LA, but they did not believe that
© 98 V3 North’s 59 bid was demonstrably
< AQ109 O K8762 suggested by the Ul The Director
&K & JO8 decided that North’s intent over 14
a2 had been to double and then bid

hearts. He also decided that South’s

© 1076 BIT did not suggest values but could

& J43 have been based on a long suit in a

® AQ7542 weak hand. Therefore, North was

permitted to bid 5V and the table

WEST NORTH EAST  SOUTH rle6s)1.11t was allowed to stand (Law

1o Dbl 3 Pass(1)
46 59 Pass Pass
54 Pass Pass Dbl

The Appeal: E/W appealed the
Director’s ruling. North did not

All Pass attend the hearing. E/W pointed out
that the North hand had five potential
(1) BIT losers and that bidding 59V risked

going down three vulnerable doubled
undertricks for —800 against E/W’s
420 or 450. Taking a vulnerable vs non-vulnerable save is always difficult, but
South’s (agreed) 2-minute BIT, which suggested some high-card strength in a
minor, made North’s 59 bid less dangerous. South brought a note from his partner
(who could not attend the hearing) that said he (North) had sensed that the hand
would be bid competitively and chose to double 14 and then bid hearts so that the
opponents wouldn’t double him later fearing his strength. North also wrote that if
the opponents were bidding competitively his partner (South) would have some
cards. Further, if West had a big enough hand to bid game after East showed
weakness then N/S would have a good save.

The Panel Decision: The Panel analyzed South’s 2-minute (at least) BIT and
decided it showed values—not just weak minor-suit length—that could have
suggested bidding. Four players, each with 2500-4000 MP, were then consulted.
One player said that with the North hand he would bid either 29 or 49
immediately. When a double was imposed on him and the auction came back
around at 44 he said he would not bid again at that vulnerability. The other three
players considered a double after the 14 opening and one of them bid 59 over 44,
When the players were asked their opinion of the implications of South’s 2-minute
BIT, all thought it showed values. Based on this input, the Panel decided that
passing 4# was an LA for North and that West would then have declared 44
undoubled (South would have passed, consistent with his having failed to act over
3#). Therefore, the contract was changed to 4# by West down one, +50 for N/S.

DIC of Event: Millard Nachtwey

Panel: Patty Holmes (Reviewer), Ken VanCleve, Candy Kuschner, Charlie
MacCracken

Players consulted: four players with 2500-4000 MP
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& The panelists unanimously support the Panel’s decision to adjust the score,
several noting the more-than-superficial resemblance to the previous case.

R. Cohen: “The flip-flop of CASE TWO. This time it was the weaker hand that
broke tempo, but the message was the same. A good job by the Panel.”

Treadwell: “Same as CASE TWO, although the BIT was by South rather than
North. The Panel made the same, correct decision.”

Endicott: “Wasn’t  here a few moments ago? This deal has the seeds of hesitations
init.”

S Raising a valid point about the table ruling are...

Rigal: “The Director committed the all-too-frequent error of ruling for the offenders
in a case of doubt. When a Panel or Committee overturns such a ruling, does it not
mean that there has to have been enough doubt for the initial ruling to go the other
way? We are not talking here about encouraging frivolous Director calls; we are
talking about encouraging people not to commit infractions because they will get
ruled against. Good Panel determinations. They followed due process and came out
with a sensible answer.”

Polisner: “If the correct ruling had been made, an appeal would have been unlikely
and without merit.”

&5 The next panelist was apparently thinking along similar lines but got confused
p pp y g g g
about what the table ruling was.

Allison: “Once more, consultation with peer players gives the necessary input to
the Panel and I agree with their analysis. Since one of the four players consulted
actually bid 59, I will agree with the Panel decision not to award an AWMW.”

st And now, down to the nitty-gritty...

Gerard: “Let’s decide, once again, that we aren’t supposed to decide what a
player’s intent was. If you double 14 with that hand, you don’t necessarily intend
to bid 5V over 44 vulnerable versus not. When we had this situation in CASE
SEVEN in Vancouver, several commentators said that the Committee’s attempt to
engage in mind reading similar to what the Director did here was futile: How could
you judge the intentions of a player who was off center the first time around? Sure
the tendency for the-level-is-not-a-deterrent crowd is to get your suit in, but
someone has to remind them that some levels are a deterrent on a bad day. North’s
post-facto justifications were about the quality you would expect. Saying that N/S
would have a good save if West had the values to bid game recalls Edgar’s reason
for disallowing the pull of a slow penalty double made in fourth seat: Surely the
contract was more likely to fail after a double than before it. The arguments were
self-serving and North wasn’t even there to defend them. The conclusion as to
demonstrably suggested wasn’t compelled, since South could have had mostly
diamond values. Then North wants to double 44 rather than save over it. But |
agree with the Panel, although they missed a key point: Wherever South’s values
were, her BIT guaranteed spade shortness. Then North has nine tricks in hearts and
the ®A plus South’s taking tricks in the minors. So the risk likely bottomed out at
—200 and the adjustment was clearly correct.”

¥t I’m not sure North could count on South to be quite so short in spades. South

could easily have held a doubleton, and West been five-five or such for his 44 bid.
But Ron is right about the location of South’s values: If they are in diamonds North
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will be wiser to defend. But players at this level don’t always think about those
things. South’s BIT suggests values and North, already holding a tempting 59 bid,
lunges for the brass ring. Ka-ching!

Bzzz. Sorry, not this time.

Wildavsky: “‘The Director decided that North’s intent over 14 had been to double
and then bid hearts.” I have no doubt that was North’s intent, but at what level?
Would North have bid 79 over 6#? We know from the previous case that some
Norths would not venture to the five level even after hearing a heart raise from
partner. The fact that South could have held a different hand is not relevant. All that
matters is whether we can demonstrate that if South was considering anything other
than pass then North’s 59 bid is more likely to be successful. That’s not difficult:
the hands where 59 goes for 500 are all hands where South would have had no
trouble passing. N/S’s claim was nonsensical: ‘If West had a big enough hand to
bid game after East showed weakness then N/S would have a good save.” That’s
some new law I don’t understand: the more my RHO holds the more tricks I can
take. North doesn’t even hold a tenace! The Panel did a fine job. I’d have
considered a PP for North, but I understand not assessing one when the table
Director failed to do so. The write-up contains some assertions in The Facts section
but gives little indication that the law was followed. Did the table Director believe
that the hesitation demonstrably suggested bidding, and if so did he believe there
was no LA to 59?7

st The Facts section is somewhat ambiguous since it vaguely implies that North’s
intent to double and then bid hearts meant that pass was not an LA for him. But it
also explicitly indicates that the Directors believed the BIT did not demonstrably
suggest bidding 5V since South could have had a weak hand with long diamonds,
given which the LA issue becomes moot.

Wolff: “Good decision. The Souths of the world must know that once they study
and pass they are always going to get the worst of any ruling. We run into trouble
when ‘wise guy’ Committee (or Panel) members or Directors think without
justification that this should be an exception. As long as we have exceptions the
players will always argue that this one is it.”

st I think it’s clear that Wolffie disagrees with the table ruling here but applauds
the Panel’s decision. One point though: There will always be exceptions. For
example, suppose North has ten solid hearts and a side trick. I’m sure we’d all agree

that she could bid 59 then.

Goldsmith: “Good job by the Panel. Their polls seem to be more conclusive than
I ever would have guessed a priori. I wonder, however, if South would really pass
44 Tsn’t it very likely that he would bid 5%? He knows that LHO is bidding 44 on
spade length, not total power, so bidding on even at unfavorable is likely to work
out well; he is somewhat unlikely to be doubled. North, however, prevented South’s
being able to make that decision, so the question returns as to what to do about the
score in 4#. With South’s having shown no values, a singleton lead or switch seems
to have less attractiveness than in the actual case. I think 44 will make often
enough that reciprocal 420s are in order.”

&S If South didn’t bid 4# in the actual auction why would he bid 5% over 44-P-P?

In an open event (this one was limited to 5000 MP) one could assume South
would have doubled 34 with values, so the Director’s judgment that the BIT did not
suggest values but could be based on a long suit in a weak hand would be more
reliable. But here South’s failure to double 34 or bid 4% weaken that conclusion.
The Panel wisely used peer input to reach the proper decision.



CASE FOUR

Subject (Tempo): Hesitation Blackwood Rides Again
Event: Sally Young LM-1500 Pairs, 18 Jul 03, Second Qualifying Session

The Facts: 78 made seven, +1510
Bd: 17 &4 for E/W. The opening lead was the
DIr: North € J63 VK. N/S called the Director after
Vul: None < 109754 East’s 7# bid saying that West

& J732 l\;ssitated flczr 2%—5600[11(51S 2((I)E/W agr%e(i
est took about - seconds
4 AQI986 4 KJ532 before he bid 6#. E/W played
C Al10 @98 “specific kings” over SNT. The
¢ Q83 O AKJ2 Director ruled that bidding on was
& A108 & KQ demonstrably suggested by the BIT
107 and changed the contract to 6% made
seven, +1010 for E/W (Law 16A).

© KQ7542
6 The Appeal: E/W appealed the
& 9654 Director’s ruling. E/W agreed that

the 64 bid took about 20 seconds but
said that the whole auction had been
slow and that the tempo of the 64
bid was indistinguishable from the
other bids. East said he never showed
ANT Pass 59 Dbl his OK and knew West had the other
SNT Pass Py Pass three aces and the #Q (since he

N didn’tuse the queen-ask). He showed
64(1) Pass T4 All Pass his lowest king because he didn’t
(1) BIT know if his partner wanted to play
notrump, but he was always going to
bid seven. When asked what 6& over
6% would have meant E/W said they did not think it would have asked about the
OK. N/S said there was a noticeable (20-second) BIT before the 64 bid making it
easier for East to bid seven. East could have bid seven over SNT if he wanted to.

WEST NORTH EAST SOUTH
Pass 16 Pass
2NT Pass 36 Pass

The Panel Decision: The Panel consulted five experts and five players with less
than 1500 MP (E/W’s peers). Two experts bid 7# over 6 because the East hand
had a source of tricks—not merely extra values. A third expert was uncomfortable
bidding 7# after the BIT. The two remaining experts passed 64 because West
hadn’t bid six of either red suit over 6. All five of the peers bid 74 over SNT but
passed when told that 6% was the bid made at the table and that West bid 64 over
that. All knew that 6 was a further probe and thought the BIT suggested bidding
seven. The Panel decided that there had been a BIT which player input indicated
could have suggested bidding on to this pair. East’s 7# bid was disallowed and the
contract changed to 64 made seven, +1010 for E/W.

DIC of Event: Millard Nachtwey

Panel: Patty Holmes (Reviewer), Ken VanCleve, Candy Kuschner

Players consulted: Kenny Gee, Petra Hamman, Joan Jackson, John Mohan, John
Sutherlin and five players with less than 1500 MP

S The panelists are divided into two distinct camps on this one. One camp thinks
this should have been a “Slam Dunk” AWMW while the other is a gnat’s eyelash
from allowing East to bid 7#. We’ll hear from the latter group first.

Treadwell: “I believe, in an expert field, the 7# bid could, and should, be allowed.
After all, partner has guaranteed all of the key cards and is exploring for a grand
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and East has a far better hand than he has shown. All five of the peers said they
would bid 74 over partner’s SNT bid but would pass the subsequent 64 bid in the
actual auction. This ambidextrous position does not make much sense. I suppose the
Panel had little choice in not allowing the 74 bid, but I am uncomfortable with it.”

S Even in an expert field many players bid reflexively—unless some table action
(like a BIT) wakes them up. So I’m not convinced that the issue of whether to allow
74 is much different there than it is here. But this event had a 1500 MP upper limit,
so even by Dave’s standards allowing the 74 bid is problematic. Dave is right that
bidding 7# over SNT but passing 64 if you first bid 6% and partner signs off makes
no sense, but then that’s the point, isn’t it. Players at this level often bid with little
logic or forethought, so attributing expert-level planning to their bidding is in effect
an Intelligence Transfer error.

Rigal: “Again a sensible Panel decision-making process, although I am not sure
whether we should hold it against E/W that they did not have an agreement about
the missing 6 bid. I suppose East did know that his partner’s jump to 4NT should
have delivered extras and that unless partner produced a doubleton club the grand
slam figured to be good. But we have to punish E/W for West’s SNT-then-huddle
rather than the reverse. Note that here was a case that one would need to seriously
consider whether East’s 74 bid was so clear that N/S should be left with the Grand
Slam. I’m sure Howard might have an opinion there.”

st Sorry Barry, but Howard was conspicuously mute on this one.

Allison: “Certainly the Panel cannot allow an iffy grand slam to be bid with Ul
from West. This is close enough (twelve tricks are easily seen unless West has a
doubleton club) that I’d agree with not awarding an AWMW. As well, 20 seconds
in an auction that already included a definite invitation to bid a grand slam is not
overwhelming, though it definitely is a BIT.”

Polisner: “A very reasonable decision; however, I am concerned about how the
peers knew that there had been a BIT before the 6# bid. Granted, it might be
presumed; however, the Director should try to have them bid in a vacuum. In an
IMP event the decision is 100%; however, the matchpoint consideration of notrump
could be enough for West to have been thinking of 6NT and thus the BIT may not
be suggesting seven any more than the SNT bid already had.”

&S Aha! The old “T was thinking about bidding 7NT at matchpoints” ploy. And
Jeff is buying it—sort of. Let’s hear what Ron has to say about that.

Gerard: “Good for the peers, who bid a lot better than the experts. But did the
Panel think that it couldn’t issue an AWMW because two experts bid 7#? There’s
not even any indication that it was considered, in what should have been a slam
dunk case. I mean, haven’t these casebooks been clear enough that you don’t have
any merit here? Even East’s justification proved the point. Next time, won’t
someone please ask ‘How does partner know when to bid 7NT, especially after you
just showed a short-suit king?” This hand is living proof that ‘trying for 7NT’ is
completely bogus; there are thirteen top tricks and absolutely no way to bid 7NT
short of a relay system.”

&S Ron forgot to mention that if East really was looking for 7NT and was not
influenced by the BIT he would have bid 7¢ over 64 to give West another chance
to bid 7NT (the one he was logically planning to give him when he bid his “lowest
king because he didn’t know if his partner wanted to play notrump”). One only bids
one’s lowest king when one plans to bid one’s highest king as well, provided there
is room. Note that the OK is the more important of the two kings to bid for notrump
purposes since it might promote the ¢Q in West’s hand into a trick. On the other
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hand, showing the #K when you also hold the queen is less useful since it cannot
promote extra tricks in partner’s hand—it can only count as one high-card trick.
More on the AWMW issue.

Goldsmith: “I think the last paragraph must have been accidentally omitted from
the Panel decision, which was otherwise quite excellent. Here it is: ‘E/W were
given an AWMW, as this case obviously had no merit. Furthermore, they were
given a one-quarter board PP for blatant use of Ul and were offered the opportunity
to become more well-educated about their legal responsibilities in Ul situations.’”

S A PP may be an overreaction when as little as a doubleton diamond with West
makes 74 a claimer. (After all, West had to have something more than three aces
and the #Q in a flat hand to justify his SNT bid.) On the other hand, East’s failure
to bid 7€ or to provide any competent justification for his 74 bid argues that the
74 bid was egregious and the PP justified.

Endicott: “All T would ask is ‘“What are AWMWSs for?’ East may be an
inexperienced player, but that can be recognized in the subsequent treatment of the
record. This player has something to learn.”

R. Cohen: “If you want to play in NABC+ events, you’d better think ahead when
you ask a specific question, particularly in a Blackwood situation. If you ask a
question, be it 4NT or SNT, or any variant to Blackwood that you have in your
arsenal, plan ahead and decide your rebids for each possible response that may
arise. Correct decisions by both the Director and Panel.”

Wildavsky: “The write-up is good to a point, but it needs to mention that pass was
considered an LA to 7#. It would also be useful to know what agreement, if any,
E/W had about the 34 bid. For that matter, I expect 2NT was Jacoby which, as far
as I know, still requires an Alert. The E/W contention that the entire auction had
been slow is not relevant. Some pauses are more pregnant than others, slow signofts
especially so. Still, it’s useful to know that West paused before bidding SNT. He
could have used that time profitably to consider what he’d do over 6%, 6, or 69.
Then he’d have been able to bid in tempo on the next round and East would be free
to do as he judged best.”

&S These write-ups aren’t professionally done, so let’s cut those who do them
some slack. The score adjustments strongly imply that the Directors involved in the
table ruling as well as those on the Panel believed that pass was an LA to 74. It’s
also a fact of life that auctions, Alerts and explanations are often not documented
on appeal forms as well as they might be. While we can’t take it upon ourselves to
insert Alerts for calls we think “must have been Alerted” if they were not put on the
form by the Director, it’s likely that the 2NT bid in the present case was properly
Alerted at the table (no mention was made of any problem caused by a failure to
Alert) but overlooked when the form was filled out. (Other frequent omissions are
Alerts of common conventions, like 2NT here, and ranges for notrump openings.)

While it might be useful to know E/W’s agreement about the 34 rebid (extras
with no shortage or second five-card suit), it is difficult to see how that could ever
justify allowing the 74 bid after the BIT.

I agree with those who think it is clear to disallow 74 and change the contract
to 6 made seven, +1010 for E/W. But E/W also deserve an AWMW. It would take
some persuading, but I could probably be talked into Jeff’s PP as well.

Having said that, we leave the final word to...

Wolff: “Good decision and the only possible ruling. The argument about thinking
about 7NT often comes up but pairs dealing with it are not relieved of their duty to
be actively ethical.”

CASE FIVE

Subject (Tempo): Livable Or Laughable?
Event: Spingold, 23 Jul 03, Round of 16

The Facts: 69 doubled went down

Bd: 15 Walid Elahmady one, +100 for N/S. The opening
DIr: South & A65 lead was the ®A. E/W called the
Vul: N/S (VS Director after the tray returned to
O 10542 the N-E side of the screen with the

56 and 69 bids. E/W said that

* AQ1094 South had broken tempo before

Paul Soloway Bob Hamman doubling 59V (E/W thought the
& K97 & 43 double took 3h(}-3 s selconds; Nd/S l(1iid
not contest this but later said they

Z 598764 Z 2?7%332 thought it took only 20-25 seconds).

In any case, all four players agreed

& K852 & that South’s double of 59 had been
Tarek Sadak out of tempo. (South said it took

& QJ1082 him some time to decide if North’s

VQ pass was forcing; he eventually

decided it was and doubled.) North

© AQI9 said he passed 59 intending, if

& 763 South doubled, to pull to 5% to
show a maximum. The Director
noted the ACBL screen conditions
that state: “It is considered that
there can be no implication if a tray
returns after 25 seconds or less.
59 Pass Pass Dbl(2) This period may be extended in the
Pass 54 6V Dbl later stages of a complicated or
All Pass competitive auction without
necessarily creating implications.

WEST NORTH EAST SOUTH
14
20 ONT(l) 49 44

(1) Alerted; 8-10, 4-card # support The Director ruled that South’s
(2) BIT tempo did not constitute a BIT in
the context of the present auction
and allowed the table result to

stand.

The Appeal: E/W appealed the Director’s ruling. The appeal was heard between
the third and fourth segments but, because the timing of the hearing was awkward
the case was not screened. In addition to the four players at the table, the N/S team
captain appointed another team member to attend as an advisor. E/W said that
South’s double had clearly been out of tempo and suggested doubt about defending
59 doubled. Since the North hand was well-suited to defense with only three
trumps (North said that when he bid 2NT he did not realize it showed four-card
support) and good controls, once South took a long time to double E/W believed he
was no longer entitled to override that decision and bid 5#. South said that when
59 came around to him he took time to decide whether North’s pass was forcing.
He had a minimum for his previous bidding, poor defense, and would have passed
59 had he thought he was permitted to do so. However, he thought he was forced
to bid or double so he doubled. When asked what their partnership rules were
regarding when a pass is forcing, N/S said that normally when they held at least 22-
23 combined HCP they treated passes as forcing, but at the five level only about 20-
21 HCP were needed. N/S’s advisor pointed out that N/S’s actions at the table
clearly indicated that they both considered North’s pass forcing since North passed
with 2-1/2 quick tricks opposite an opening bid and South doubled with a hand that
had no reason to do so unless he thought he was forced to take further action. South
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additionally said that his hand was a minimum with unexceptional shape (5431) and
controls—not even a six- or seven-card suit to suggest further action. Thus, his
tempo did not convey Ul to his partner. North said he erred when he bid 2NT over
29 and might better have bid 3V (showing 11+ points with at least three trumps)
or even 49 (a splinter raise). However, when he bid 2NT he did so with the hope
that he would have a chance to show extras later in the auction (by bidding 49 over
either South’s 3# signoff or East’s competitive 39). When asked how he planned
to show his extras if, for example, South jumped to 44 over 2NT he said had not
anticipated that and reiterated that his decision to bid 2NT had been a poor one.

The Committee Decision: The Committee considered two conflicting issues. On
the one hand, the screen regulations state that there should be no presumption of Ul
when the tray returns within 25 seconds or less. But while the BIT was allegedly
longer than this (30-35 seconds), the regulations also say that this period may be
extended in a complicated or competitive auction, which this surely was. So the
Director’s ruling, while subjective, was consistent with the regulations and
supported the intent behind them: to induce players to vary the tempo of their
auctions so that a delay of about 25 seconds in a complex or competitive auction
would not stand out as a BIT. On the other hand, the Committee had no doubt that
there had been a defacto BIT, that the Ul made pulling the double more attractive,
and that the North hand had every reason to sit for the double with only three
spades and excellent defensive values. And while South’s 34 bid suggested that he
might have extra spade length, his double of 5V suggested otherwise. To help the
Committee resolve this conflict, the chairman described a case he had presented to
the ACBL Laws Commission a few days earlier in which the Directors at the USBF
Open Team Trials had adjusted a result on a board, ruling that a delay (behind
screens) of only 20 seconds constituted a BIT (all four players agreed that the tray
had been moving back and forth very fast and that the 20-second delay made it clear
that a specific player had broken tempo). The consensus of the Laws Commission
was that the Directors had ruled appropriately in that case, in effect giving Directors
(and therefore Appeals Committees) the authority to treat the 25 seconds specified
in the screen regulations as an approximate rather than a fixed standard, which can
be adjusted downward or upward and in which not only the context of the auction
(complicated or competitive) but also the perceptions of the players can be taken
into account in judging whether a BIT occurred. Given this added information, the
Committee decided that there had been a BIT in the present case that made North’s
5# bid more attractive and that pass was an LA. The Committee disallowed North’s
5o bid and discussed the possible results in 59 doubled. While several leads were
possible, it was judged to be both “at all probable” and “likely” that North would
lead the #A, just as he had against 69 doubled. Therefore, the contract was
changed to 5V doubled made five, +650 for E/W.

Dissenting Opinion (Mark Feldman): While I personally disagree with the screen
regulations’ choice of 25 seconds as the period within which there is to be no
presumption of Ul (15-20 seconds seems more realistic), the regulation makes it
clear that it is the players’ responsibility to make sure, by controlling the pace of the
tray as suggested in the screen regulations, that delays of about 25 seconds are not
perceived as BITs—especially in high-level, competitive auctions as in the present
case. We should not condone the players’ failure to accept this responsibility by
adjusting the result, especially when it was never established (at least not to my
satisfaction) that the delay was actually as long as 25 seconds. The regulation is
clear that delays of up to 25 seconds or so should not be considered BITs, and in
this auction the tray should have been delayed on the S-W side of the screen for
about that long even if South had acted quickly over 59. It was only because the
players established through their quick tempo that they would not do this that this
problem arose. Thus, the regulations should have been enforced as the Directors did
in making their ruling. I would have allowed the table result to stand.

Chairman’s Note: Good arguments have been given for deciding this case both as
the Committee did and as the dissenter suggests. The problem is that the ACBL
Laws Commission has chosen to allow the screen regulations to remain in effect
specifying a “Ul-free” time period—25 seconds—that on practical grounds is too
long to live with comfortably; their ratification of the ruling from the 2003 Open
Team Trials is evidence of that. Everyone who has played in or Directed screen
events knows that 25 seconds can be an eternity behind screens; most players will
not hold the tray for anywhere near that long. The EBL and WBF screen regulations
specify a 15-second Ul-free time period in these situations and there is no reason
why we should not change ours to be consistent with theirs and to make our screen
regulations more livable. If it is accurate to say that it takes about 10 seconds for the
tray to return normally, players should be willing hold it for another 5-10 seconds
(making a total of 15-20 seconds) in tempo-sensitive situations. But asking them to
delay it for an extra 15 seconds or even longer is simply asking too much. The Laws
Commission and/or the Conventions and Competition Committee should review the
screen regulation and shorten the specified time period to 20 seconds (or perhaps
even to 15 seconds) and have ACBL Directors enforce the new 15- or 20-second
time period strictly as written.

DIC of Event: Roger Putnam
Committee: Rich Colker (non-voting chair), Ralph Cohen, Mark Feldman, Bobby
Levin, Lou Reich, Steve Weinstein

S So, should we stick to the letter of the screen regulations or base our decision
on the principle that what really matters is not whether some arbitrary condition has
been met but rather whether Ul was made available to the player that could have
affected his action (see Jeff Goldsmith’s comment in CASE TWO)?

Most of the panelists follow the latter principle, led by...

Goldsmith: “T don’t believe the regulation quoted is legal. If it’s known that a
player has Ul by everyone at the table, the exact amount of time it took for him to
get Ul is irrelevant. No regulation can say, ‘yes, we know you have UI, but you
officially do not.” The only way to make such a regulation work is to make it a
violation of procedure to return a tray in less than 25 seconds. That will slow the
game down way too much; players simply will not comply with it. So while the idea
seems rational, it’s not ready for use yet. When we play major events with
computers, we’ll be able to enforce such delays. Perhaps we can even make the rule
(then, not now) 10 seconds below game and 25 seconds above game. A player will
not be barred from taking longer, of course, but as soon as he does, all four screens
will indicate that the situation has become a possible UI candidate.

“Back to reality. Everyone knew South had tanked before doubling. Therefore,
there was U, regardless of the details. Was North’s passing 5 doubled an LA? Of
course; many would choose it. Two aces and only three spades? Looks pretty
obvious to me to pass. Partner only needs to supply one trick. After a few months,
I’ve finally come around to believing that N/S each agreed that they were in a
forcing auction. I don’t see why they ought to be unless their system description
was missing a bit, but that happens. Clearly they were in agreement on the topic.
Still, while their argument is cogent, it fails at the sentence starting with “Thus.’
South’s slow double does provide UI, this is not the same situation as a slow pass
in a forcing auction. The Committee got it right; North’s pull is illegal. How to
adjust? That North led the #A against 69 doubled is a strong argument for
requiring him to lead it against 59 doubled. But there’s also an argument that he led
an ace because he was on lead versus a slam with two aces. Personally, I think I’d
have led a trump against either contract, but a quick poll showed that most would
lead the #A, so the Committee got it right. By the way, ‘Alerted and explained’
isn’t a full description of what happened behind screens. It ought to be a matter of
course to include each explanation in these casebooks.”



st Jeff may be overstating the illegality of the screen regulation. That’s because
the opponents, by not insuring that the tray tempo is controlled better, helped make
the Ul possible (i.e., they are guilty of something akin to contributory negligence).
This is similar to the situation that confronts us when we give a player greater-than-
normal latitude to vary his tempo from the usual 10 seconds if his RHO makes a
Skip Bid and does not use a Stop Card (see Weinstein’s and Wildavsky’s comments
on CASE TWO). In essence, we are saying that ambiguous situations may be
resolved against a side that does not follow recommended procedure and thereby
helps create a problem. Note that if the situation is not ambiguous (say the next
player takes 2 minutes rather than 15 seconds to bid over RHO’s preempt, or stares
at the ceiling muttering “What to do, what to do...”) normal procedure is followed
and there is no “contributory negligence.” And in the present case the alleged 30
seconds or so South took is surely close enough to the 25 seconds afforded him in
the screen regulations to be considered ambiguous.

A cogent (if not totally historically accurate) discussion of the application of
the 25-second specification in the screen regulation is provided by...

Gerard: “Red meat for lawyers. The lack of a presumption is not the same as a safe
harbor, it just means you have to look elsewhere. The conditions really mean ‘there
can be no implication [merely because] a tray returns after 25 seconds or less.’
Twenty-five seconds is not a ‘Ul-free’ zone. If the players act in accordance with
the intent of the screen conditions and vary their tempo, 25 seconds will carry no
implication and there really is nothing else to overcome the presumption. If they
don’t, 25 seconds still will carry no implication but other evidence may rebut the
presumption. The players lose the benefit of the presumption of no UI by not
delaying the tray early on. Without that presumption, it is likely that 25 seconds or
even less as in the USBF example will be deemed a BIT just because it was and
everybody knew it. Rewind Justice Stewart’s quote from the Obscenity Cases.

“So I disagree with the Dissent. The regulation is clear that delays of up to 25
seconds or so should not be considered BITs only if the players live up to their
responsibility to control the pace of the tray. Whether the result is adjusted is not
a direct consequence of failing to accept that responsibility. No one was
‘condoning’ that failure, they were just looking to real rather than presumed
evidence to determine whether there was a BIT. No one could know in the early
stage of this auction which side would have the high-level competitive problem, so
it wasn’t as if E/W could potentially put N/S at risk by rushing the tray. It was the
table as a whole that forfeited the presumption through its earlier quick tempo.
Adjusting the result is certainly one of the possibilities once the presumption is
forfeited, just because a BIT is easier to establish. The Director wasn’t enforcing
the regulation, he was treating 25 seconds as a safe harbor even though the
preconditions for the safe harbor did not apply.

“The rest of you can decide what the appropriate holding period is, but under
the conditions in effect for this event the majority was correct that there was a BIT.
Even though the BIT was due to forcing pass uncertainty, that uncertainty was not
demonstrably suggested when North himself had no such doubts. So the UI did
demonstrably suggest bidding 54, notwithstanding that South didn’t have his
suggestion. The only issue is whether pass was an LA to a North who passed 44
with that hand. As in CASE ONE, it could have been that North planned the auction
to show a maximum. But pass-then-pull is really only useful as a slam try. If South
were to double 59 he wasn’t bidding a slam over 5. Just because North passed
with a maximum didn’t mean that he was committed to pulling a double. And it’s
deja vu all over again: how would he show his extras if South bid 5#? N/S’s
advisor was engaging in a bit of bridge lawyering by telling us what we already
knew, that North thought the auction forcing. That didn’t prevent the forcing pass
from having its usual meaning, as an invitation to bid on or a willingness to sit for
a double. If North felt so strongly he could have bid 5 directly, sending basically
the same message as pass-then-pull and avoiding the guess when South would have
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had his own 5# bid. Doesn’t North’s hand just look like a pass-then-abide, even to
N/S’s advisor? As in CASE ONE, some of North’s peers would have passed the
double even after having passed 5¥ and more would have considered it. As for the
adjustment, the lead against 59 is different than the lead against six. But either ace
lets the hand make and there can’t be any quarrel with the Committee’s judgment.
Too bad. N/S seem like honest, believable types, even though their forcing-pass
agreements are going in the wrong direction. And the screen conditions are in there
pitching knucklers also. Appeals can be a messy job at times.”

st In addition to being cogent, Ron’s analysis is incisive and compelling.

As an aside, Ron’s conclusion “So the UI did demonstrably suggest bidding
S5#, notwithstanding that South didn’t have his suggestion” is yet another good
example of why Bobby Goldman’s suggestion—i.e., that an action is not
demonstrably suggested if the Ul-transmitter’s hand does not match the UI (see
Howard’s comment in CASE ONE and my response to it)—is unworkable.

More support for “principle” over “the letter of the regulation”...

Endicott: “In Menton, with screens in use, the European Bridge League
Tournament Appeals Committee was generally reluctant to tie decisions to precise
counts of 15 seconds, more or less, when forming a view about the existence of UL
The tendency was to stretch the 15 seconds specified in the CoC to something a
little longer. A difficulty with such regulations is that specified durations of
hesitations take no account of the regular flow of the tray movement (or the auction)
at the table in question. A BIT is a breach of the tempo at that table, not of some
universal law of motion. At my suggestion, EBL and WBF CoC have picked up the
phrase ‘hot seat ruling’ from an earlier NABC Appeals Casebook and given it
shape. This covers a special subset of such occurrences. (See the amendments to the
WBF GCoC for Monaco, 2003, and section 10.2.4 of the EBL CoC for Menton re
Law 74D.)”

Rigal: “I sympathize with the Director—I’d certainly like to see him following the
CoC—and also with the dissenter, especially in the context of my view that the
Committee should not be making the law, just enforcing it. However, everyone has
abreaking point and I think the Commiittee did exactly the right thing, helped by the
chair. No matter what the Laws Commission says, the 25-second pause is way too
long; I hope this case influences them to amend that period.”

R. Cohen: “Conditions of Contest may not supercede the laws. If, because of the
tempo of the previous bidding, a Director or Committee determines that the return
of the tray in 25 seconds was an ‘unmistakable hesitation’ (see Law 16A), the law
takes precedence and the result may be subject to adjudication. This is where the
dissenter went astray.”

Allison: “I discount completely North’s statement that he did not know that 2NT
showed four trumps (it is not established in the write-up what North did tell East).
I agree fully (having played often behind screens) that as much as 25 seconds is an
eternity when you are waiting for the tray to come back and that even such a delay
would constitute a BIT. That having been said, it is easy to come to the conclusions
that the Committee did; that there was a BIT and that North’s hand was well-suited
to defense. Therefore, I vote with the Committee on this case.”

&5 And now for those who favor form over substance.

Polisner: “If we have a regulation, we must abide by it and if it is wrong, we should
change it as the dissenter suggests. Table result stands.”

Treadwell: “Let us suppose that screens were not being used and South had tanked
before doubling 59. Would we allow a pull by North? I think not, particularly at
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unfavorable vulnerability, since North has good defensive but scant offensive
values. Behind screens, the problem is somewhat different and I tend ever so
slightly to agree with the dissenter, but do not believe the Committee made an
outrageously poor decision.”

Weinstein: “A tough call, but I slightly prefer the dissenter’s position and for the
reasons he expresses. Since this case (and the one cited by our Editor), the USBF
has modified their screen procedures to create a 15-second Ul-free window and
presumably the Conventions and Competition Committee will consider and
recommend the new timing for ACBL screen events as well. The regulation may
have provided too long a window, but it was the guideline in effect at that time. Had
North claimed that he thought he had time to consider his call because of the
window provided, how could we ru